
 

 
 

SLOUGH SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

SCHOOLS GROUP: 
 
Maggie Waller (Chair), John Constable (Vice-Chair),Louise Lund, Debbie Richards, Julie 
O'Brien, Paul Adams, Barbara Clark, Gillian Coffey, Harry Duffy, , Paul McAteer, Kevin 
O'Driscoll, Jon Reekie, Mary Sparrow, Maggie Stacey, Jo Rockall, Virginia Barrett, Jean 
Cameron, Nicky Willis, Philip Gregory, Navroop Mehat and Hardip Singh 
 
OBSERVERS: 
 
Lynda Bussley 
 
ATTENDEES:  
 
Kathleen Higgins, Helen Huntley, Angela Mellish, Councillor Pavitar K. Mann 
 
CAMBRIDGE EDUCATION: 
 
Robin Crofts 
 
LOCAL EDUCATION AUTHORITY 
 
Steve Elson, Atul Lad and Rajpreet Johal (Clerk) 
 
DATE & TIME:  WEDNESDAY, 19TH MARCH, 2014 AT 8.00 AM 
 BEECHWOOD RESEARCH AND CONFERENCE CENTRE, LONG 

READINGS LANE, SLOUGH, BERKSHIRE, SL2 1QE 

 
AGENDA 

Page 
1. Apologies   
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest    
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary 

or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to 
be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, 
having regard to the circumstances described in Section 3 
paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, 
leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for 
exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 
3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have a 
declarable interest. 
 

 



 

 

  
All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form 
detailing the nature of their interest. 
 

 

 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising   
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4. 2014-15 Budget Process Update   
 

(Pages 7 - 8) 

5. Growth Fund Outturn   
 

(Pages 9 - 10) 

6. PFI - paper to follow   
 

 

7. Funding for Specialist Leaders of Education   
 

(Pages 11 - 14) 

8. Cambridge Education   
 

 

9. Academies Update   
 

 

10. 2013-14 Work Programme and Key Decisions Log   
 

(Pages 15 - 22) 

11. Membership   
 

(Pages 23 - 28) 

12. Any Other Business   
 

 

 

 



Slough Schools Forum- Meeting held on Wednesday, 26th February, 2014 
 

Present: Maggie Waller, Holy Family Primary School (Chair) 
John Constable, Langley Grammar (Vice-Chair) 
Louise Lund, Barney Bees Day Nursery 
Debbie Richards, Arbour Vale School 
Kathleen Higgins, Beechwood Secondary School 
Gillian Coffey, Lynch Hill Primary School 
Paul McAteer, Slough and Eton C of E Business and Enterprise College 
Jon Reekie, James Elliman Primary School 
Mary Sparrow, Wexham Secondary School 
Maggie Stacey, St Anthony's RC Primary School 
Jo Rockall, Herschel Grammar School 
Jean Cameron, Slough Children's Centres 
Nicky Willis, Cippenham Primary School 
Hardip Singh, Khalsa Primary School 
 

 
Observers:  None 

  
 

Attendees Kathleen Higgins, Tony Smith (Cambridge Education), Robin Crofts 
(Cambridge Education), Mike Hartley (Cippenham Primary School) 

 
Officers: Atul Lad and Rajpreet Johal (Clerk) 

 
 

Apologies: 
 

Paul Adams, Helen Huntley, Virginia Barrett, Lynda Bussley, Philip 
Gregory and Navroop Mehat 

 
PART I 

 
301. Welcome and Apologies  

 
Philip Gregory, Navroop Mehat, Helen Huntley, Paul Adams, Virginia Barrett, Lynda 
Bussley 
 
 

302. Declarations of Interest  
 
None 
 

303. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising  
 
Page 2 
 
Robin Crofts reported there has been no decision made on who will represent the 
Local Authority at Schools Forum.  
 
Robin Crofts noted Jackie Wright was requested to send the key contact details for 
the Local Authority . Jackie has now left the authority and the Forum confirmed this 
has not been received. Robin to speak to Chris Aston to arrange for these key 
contacts to be distributed.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



Page 3 
 
Paragraph 3, comment from Navroop to be amended to read: ‘Navroop Mehat made 
reference to Primary Headteachers’ concerns’.  
 
Atul Lad confirmed the model with the financial implications was circulated to Forum 
members.  
 
Page 4 
 
Growth Fund; Maggie Waller reported that two letters were received from Primary 
Head colleagues regarding concerns voiced at Schools Forum. Maggie Waller 
agreed to circulate both letters to Forum members along with her responses. 
Maggie asked if there are any outstanding questions. Nicky Willis advised there is a 
Primary Headteachers’ meeting where any outstanding questions will be discussed.  
 
Maggie Waller will write to the Department for Education to raise the issue of the 
impact of no funding being provided to support these expansions. Maggie asked for 
evidence from the primary schools to support this. Nicky Willis to provide Maggie 
with a paragraph to be inserted in the letter. Atul Lad to provide Maggie with 
information on schools not able to be funded in 2013/14. 
 
It was confirmed that around £100,000 remained in the Growth Fund for 2013/14.    
 
Atul Lad confirmed that any allocation from the Growth Fund is made within the 
agreed criteria and any proposal to allocate outside the criteria would be brought to 
Schools Forum.   
 
Page 5 
 
Centrally retained items were agreed by the Forum in December 2013 and January 
2014 and these decisions have been included in the key decisions log.  
 
Maggie Waller noted it had been agreed to seek clarification regarding PFI from the 
Local Authority. It remains unclear what the overall position is regarding the PFI 
Council funding of over £800,000 as only the High Needs Block element of this has 
been brought to the attention of the Schools Forum at this stage (January meeting) 
and the remaining element (in excess of £500,000) has not been clarified for 
2013/2014 or 2014/15.  The Chief Executive has confirmed that a report regarding 
PFI will come to the March Schools Forum meeting.  
 
Key Decisions Log 
Early Years Block – line 153 to be amended to take out ‘new’. 
 
Membership 
Maggie Waller reported we are waiting for January census figures to know if the 
balance on the group is right and then a review of membership will be done and 
brought to Schools Forum in March.  
 
Academy Proprietors: Maggie reported there are still responses to be received from 
academies regarding the contact details for the purpose of election of academy 
members. Rajpreet Johal sent out a reminder email with a new deadline of 7th 
March. It was confirmed that the Academy Proprietor should be a Trust member and 

Page 2



if there is a vacancy for an academy member on this Forum is would be the 
proprietors that would elect the member. 
 
Mary Sparrow noted the importance of maintaining headteacher representation on 
the Forum.  
 
There was discussion about the importance of raising Governors’ awareness about 
Schools Forum and Jon Reekie suggested that someone from the Forum could 
attend the next Governors’ Conference. Maggie Waller offered to do this.  Jon 
agreed to follow this up.   
 
 

304. Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring 2013-14  
 
Atul Lad presented the report to inform the Schools Forum of 2013-14 forecasted 
school revenue balances as at the end of Quarter 3. The information provided to the 
Forum is based on schools’ returns for the end of the 3rd quarter, from April to 
December.  Atul confirmed this is only for maintained schools.  
 
It was noted that 13 schools are projecting to end the year with balances above the 
balance control mechanism thresholds of 8% (primary schools) and 5% (secondary 
schools).  
 
Summary of issues noted in the returns are staffing and the difficulties in finding 
adequate replacements, capital works being delayed, new grants for teacher training 
and adjustments in nursery budgets.  
 
Atul Lad to follow up any schools on Appendix 1 table showing particularly high and 
low figures e.g.  going into double figures. The headteacher can be invited to attend 
Schools Forum if there is to be discussion about their particular school.  
 
John Constable noted it would be useful to have an update on St Joseph’s given the 
Forum’s previous commitments to support the school.  
 
 

305. 2014-15 Budget Process Update  
 
Atul Lad presented the report to inform the Schools Forum of the current position 
regarding the 2014-15 school budgets.  
 
Atul noted that the budget proforma including unit values was submitted to the DfE. 
Maintained schools should have received their allocations and academies should 
receive theirs through the EFA.  
 
The final part of the process is Early Years and Special Needs. 
 
It was noted in 5.1 of the report that the formula agreed by the Forum was ratified by 
the Chief Executive and Cabinet Member for Education.  
 
 

306. Cambridge Education  
 
Robin Crofts provided a verbal update: 
 

Page 3



Robin noted that Cambridge Education is going through a review process relating to 
Raising Achievement, SEN and services for pupils with AEN, Access, Services to 
Schools, Early Years and Children’s Centres and Business Support.  
 
Robin reported the review has taken place over the last few months and moved to a 
position where Cambridge Education has generated initial recommendations and 
they are supported in principle by the Local Authority, and are now into the next 
phase of sharing with team members.  
 
Robin reported it has been discussed at SSEF and the intention is that it would be 
useful to set up a small group to focus on areas of the recommendations from the 
review and invite headteachers and stakeholders to discuss in more detail. 
 
Process of review: 

• Sharing with teams 

• Set up stakeholder groups 

• Refine the recommendations and take back to Local Authority in April / May 

• If any big issues arise it will need to go to Cabinet at the beginning of July 
Initial implementation May to September.  

 
Overarching issues:  

• A more holistic approach to service delivery 

• For services to be better integrated internally, particularly with social care 
around early help.  

• Re-shaping of services 

• Improving quality, efficiency and effectiveness  

• Developing and expanding traded services  
 
Maggie Stacey noted it was difficult for schools to budget when costs are unknown, 
and to assist with accountability it was important to have up to date service level 
agreements (SLAs) in place.  Robin reported they are not looking at fundamental 
changes but refinement of services. He noted that SLAs could be circulated in draft 
form to provide earlier information.  
 
Nicky Willis requested clarity about what is statutory and what is non-statutory and 
what is available for maintained schools and for academies. Robin Crofts confirmed 
that updated SLAs will include this detail.  
 
Tony Smith confirmed that the LA is continuing to retain the SEN statutory elements.    
 
Robin Crofts referred to slides that were shared with the Local Authority. Robin to 
share these slides with the Forum after going through steps with staff internally.  
 

307. Academies Update  
 
Robin Crofts reported the information has not changed significantly since the last 
meeting.  
 
9-10 additional schools are likely to be moving to Academy status over the next 
year.  
 
Western House is moving into the Park Trust on the proposed date of 1st June.  
 
 

Page 4



308. 2013-14 Work Programme and Key Decisions Log  
 
Noted. 
 
 

309. Any Other Business  
 
Nicky Willis asked for clarification of how the Growth Fund is allocated and Atul Lad 
confirmed that schools will receive it as part of the budget.  
 
 
 
 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 8.15 am and closed at 9.15 am) 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



2014-15 Budget Process Update March 2014 

SLOUGH SCHOOLS’ FORUM 
19 March 2014 

 

 
2014-15 Budget Process Update 

(Directorate of Wellbeing) 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Forum of the current position regarding the 2014-15 school 

budgets. 
  
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Forum notes the current position regarding the 2014-15 school 

budgets. 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To keep the Forum informed of the school budget process for 2014-15. 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Not applicable.  
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
5.1 The 5 to 16 budgets were sent to maintained mainstream schools on 

23rd January. 
5.2 The High Needs allocation for all schools has now been finalised and 

distributed. 
5.3 Early Years allocations will be calculated and distributed as soon as 

the DfE provide us with the January census numbers. 
 
5.4 The table below shows the remaining significant dates in the 2014-15 

budget process. 
 

Date Item Notes 

14/03/14 Send Early Years 
budgets to schools 
and PVIs (DfE 
deadline is 31st 
March) 

Awaiting January census 
numbers from DfE. 

14/03/14 Send High Needs 
budgets to 
Mainstream Schools 
and Special Schools 

This has been distributed to 
schools. 

  
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



2014-15 Budget Process Update March 2014 

 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 The relevant legal provisions are contained within the main body of this 

report. 
 

Section 151 Officer – Strategic Director of Resources  
 
6.2 The financial implications of the report are outlined in the supporting 

information. 
 
 Access Implications 
 
6.3 There are no access implications. 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 None. 
 
 Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 Not applicable. 
 
 Representations Received 
 
7.3 Not applicable. 
 

Background Papers 
None. 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Atul Lad (Principal Accountant, ECS)  
(01753 875547)  
atul.lad@slough.gov.uk  

 

Page 8



Growth Fund 2013-14 Outturn March 2014 

SLOUGH SCHOOLS’ FORUM 
19th March 2014 

 

 
Growth Fund Outturn 

(Directorate of Wellbeing) 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Schools’ Forum of the 2013-14 Growth Fund outturn.  
  
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 No recommendations 
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 No recommendations.  
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Not applicable.   
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
5.1 The funds have been distributed according to the criteria set out in the 

Growth fund paper presented to the forum in May 2013. 
 
5.2 The table below shows the outturn position for the 2013-14 Growth 

Fund. Any under spend will form part of the overall in-year underspend 
and will be carried forward into 2015-16.   

 

Original Budget £385,000 

Allocated in 2013-
14: 

 

Claycots Reception £86,598 

Claycots Year 1 £78,725 

Godolphin Infants 
Reception 

£55,108 

Willow Primary £55,108 

St Mary’s £55,108 

Total Allocated so far £330,647 

Current Remainder £54,353 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 9



Growth Fund 2013-14 Outturn March 2014 

 
 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 The relevant legal provisions are contained within the main body of this 

report. 
 

Section 151 Officer – Strategic Director of Resources  
 
6.2 The financial implications of the report are outlined in the supporting 

information. 
 
 Access Implications 
 
6.3 There are no access implications. 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 None. 
 
 Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 Not applicable. 
 
 Representations Received 
 
7.3 Not applicable. 
 

Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Atul Lad (Principal Accountant, ECS)  
(01753 875547)  
atul.lad@slough.gov.uk  

 

Page 10



Schools Forum Paper 
 
Funding for Specialist Leaders of Education 
 
1.  Purpose of report 
The purpose of this report is to inform Schools Forum of the proposed allocation of a maximum 
£68k of funding currently held by Cambridge Education for school improvement, to be directed 
towards supporting the deployment of Specialist Leaders of Education. 
 
 
2. Background information 
Specialist Leaders of Education (SLEs) are outstanding middle and senior leaders with a particular 
area of expertise and a successful track record of school improvement work.  Their role is to support 
leaders in other schools through coaching, training, group support, analysis and action planning.   
 
SLEs are recruited and designated by Teaching Schools using criteria set by the National College 
for Teaching and Leadership (NCTL) and following a national timetable.  Applicants undergo an 
assessment process, and the Teaching School is responsible for their subsequent deployment and 
quality assurance.  
 
The type of deployment will vary according to local need;  there is no preferred model and no pre-
defined time commitment for a deployment. One deployment might require two days of support, 
another a more extended commitment over a period of time. Yet another might involve the 
organisation and delivery of training to leaders from more than one school. Deployments should be 
agreed between all parties prior to them taking place, with due regard for the capacity of the SLE 
and his/her school.   
 
There is an expectation that schools arranging support from an SLE will pay in the same way as 
they would if they arranged for an external consultant.  The Teaching School is responsible for 
setting the charging rates for SLEs in a particular area;  however, the overlapping geographical 
areas of the teaching school alliances are leading to the emergence of a typical rate of around £375 
per day.  Teaching Schools do not receive any funding to support the deployment of SLEs from the 
National College, or from any other government source.  
 
 
3.  SLEs in Slough 
The three Teaching Schools in Slough (Langley Grammar School, Lynch Hill Primary School 
Academy and Upton Court Grammar school) have organised one recruitment round, and a further 
round is expected to take place in May 2014. Potential SLEs may come from any school but must 
have the support and agreement of their headteacher to release them for an agreed amount of time.  
 
Following the first round of recruitment, SLEs have been designated in the following areas of 
expertise: 

• Computing/ICT 

• Music 

• Early Years 

• Initial Teacher Training, CPD and NQT induction 

• Geography 

• Gifted and Talented provision 

• Modern Foreign Languages 
 
In the next round, priority will be given to areas such as maths and English, where recruitment was 
previously unsuccessful.  SLEs designated in the next round would be available for deployment 
from September 2014.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 11



4.  Allocation of funding 
There is an underlying principle that the deployment of SLEs as a ‘traded service’;  the school 
releasing the SLE should receive compensatory payment, and the SLE themselves should be 
remunerated for their contribution beyond their normal role.  
 
However, we are at an early stage in the development of a fully charged model for school 
improvement.  Some schools may be unable to meet the costs of the support which is believed 
necessary.  Others may need to be convinced of the credibility of the SLE model before making 
what could be a significant financial input.  
 
The proposed allocation would be used to provide: 
 

a) Additional funding to deploy SLEs to meet school improvement priorities for vulnerable 
schools whose budgets may be significantly constrained; 

 
b) Funding for one or more SLEs to work across the area on significant cross-school priorities 

identified by Cambridge Education (eg mathematics) 
 

c) ‘Pump-prime’ funding to cover the release costs of SLEs into schools for initial deployments, 
with extended deployments being fully charged. (eg, “We can offer you two days of SLE time 
free of charge;  further days would be charged at.....”) 

 
The funding would be passed to the Slough Learning Partnership who will broker the deployment of 
SLEs, and will provide regular reports on the use of the funds back to Cambridge Education.  The 
use of the additional funding to particularly support vulnerable schools would be in close 
consultation with Cambridge Education.  
 
The appendix shows how the maximum funding figure has been calculated. The allocation would 
cover the period April 2014 – July 2015 with a review in the summer term of 2015.  Further 
allocation would depend on an assessment of the impact of the SLEs during that time.  
 
 
5.  Recommendation 
Schools Forum is asked to note the proposal as outlined, which is supported by Cambridge 
Education.    
 
 
 

John Constable, Langley Grammar School 
Dawn Bailey, Slough Learning Partnership 

March 2014 
 

Page 12



 

Appendix 
 

Costing model 
 
The indicative proposal assumes: 

• an SLE unit cost in line with other teaching school alliances of £375 per day. 

• a total of 15 SLEs designated across the area following the second round of recruitment.  

 

Possible Deployment Unit cost Maximum level of 
funding 

Up to 12 secondary schools, each accessing up 
to two days of SLE time free of charge, with 
further deployment costs fully charged. 
 

£375 £9,000 

Up to 34 primary schools and early years 
settings, each accessing up to two days of SLE 
time free of charge, with further deployment costs 
fully charged. 
 

£375 £25,500 

Up to 10 ‘vulnerable’ schools, supported with up 
to 5 additional uncharged SLE days. 
 

£375 £18,750 

Employment of one SLE on 0.2 FTE to work 
across the area on key priority. 
 

0.2 x Lead Practitioner  
salary + on costs 

£14,000 

Total  £67,250 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



14/03/2014 

Slough Schools’ Forum – 2013-14 Work Programme 
 
 
Wednesday 19 March 2014 

• 2014-15 Budget Process Update 

• Growth Fund Outturn 

• PFI 

• Funding for Specialist Leaders of Education 

• Cambridge Education 

• Academies update 

• 2013-14 Work programme and Key Decisions log 

• Membership 
 
 
Wednesday 7 May 2014  

• Review of Scheme for Financing Schools 

• Schools Forum Operational and Decision Making Framework 

• Cambridge Education 

• Academies update 

• 2014-15 Work programme and Key Decisions log 
 
 
Wednesday 2 July 2014 

• Schools Outturn 2013-14 

• Central Outturn 2013-14 

• School Budget Plans 2014-15 

• Confirmation of Final DSG allocations 2014-15 (subject to DfE 
notification date) 

• Cambridge Education – review outcomes and financial implications 

• Academies update 

• Dates of meetings – 2014-15 academic year 

• 2014-15 Work programme and Key Decisions log 
 
September 2014 
 

• DSG Centrally held items discussion begins 

• Cambridge Education 

• Academies update 

• 2014-15 Work programme and Key Decisions log 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
�




�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��




�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�	
�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
��


�
�
��


��
�
	�



��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�



��
��
		
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
�	
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�	
�




��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�
��


	�


��
�
��

��
�
	�
��
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

 

�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
	


!
�"
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�"
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�
��


��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�#


�


�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

#

$
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
%
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
&
�
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�'
��

�
�
�
��
%
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%


��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
&


�
��
�
�

�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��


��
�
��
�

��
�	
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��




�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
	�
�
�
�(

��
��
��
	�
��
�%


��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
%
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
)
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�%
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
%
��
�
*
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
�
)
*
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
"�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��



	�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��

��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�+
,
-
��

�
�&
��
��
��
�
��
.�
��
��
�
�
)
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
)
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
��
��


�
�
�
	�
�'
+
,
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
-�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


	�
�


��
�
�
�
�"
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


��


	�
�
�
	�

�
�
	 
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��


�
�
��


�

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

.�
��

�
��
��

�
��
	�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
	�



��
��


	�
�
��
��
�/
��
�
��

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�

	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
0�

$
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%


��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
&


�
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��


��
�
��
�

��
�	
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��




�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
	�
�
�
�(

��
��
��
	�
��
�%


��
��
�
�
�
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
	�
	�
0�
-1

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�


	�


�
�0
��

/
�
��
'
�0
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�1
/
0


�
�
2

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
	�
�
��
��

�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
��
2
�
�
�
3

4
�1
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�5
1
��
�
�
�
�
6�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�5
�
	�
�
�
	�
60

4
�'
	�
�
��
�
	�
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�

��
�
��
��
�
�
0

4
�7
�


	�
�
�	
�
��
��
��
	�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�

��
�
��
��
�
�
0

4
�#
�
��
��
�


	�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
&


��
�
��
�
��
��
��


		
�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�	
�
��
��
��
	�
�
2
�
�
�
�(

�
!
��


	�
�
��
�0

$
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��


�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
8�
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��


��
�
��
�

��
�	
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��




�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
 
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��


�
�
�
	�
	�
�
��
�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

.�
��

�
��
��

�
��
	�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
)
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
-�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


0

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�




�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
)
��
�
�%
��
%
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
%
%
��
&
�
�4

�
�
��
�
��
�

3




�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�5
�
'
�	
�

�
��
�
�
��
.�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 17



;
�
��
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
-�

�
 
�
�
��
��
�
	�
/
�
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�


��
��

��
��
�
�
�1
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
-�
�




�


�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
	

�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��




�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��




�
��
�
	�



��
0�

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�1
�
�
�
�
�
�<
��
��
�
�
�!
��
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
#
/
��

��
�
��


	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�


��
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�7
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
	�
�	
�
�1
�
�
�
�
�
�<
�!
��

�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
=
�

�
��
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
��


��
�
�
��
��
�	
��


��
�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�
�
"�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�>
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�7
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
	�
��
�
?�
�
?�
�
�@

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�	
��


��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
��


�

��
�


�A
�
=
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�>
�
�
�
	�
*
��
�
(
@�
�
�
�
�:
B
=
�.
�
1
/
.0
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�


�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��


		
�
�
��
�

	�


��
�
��

��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
��


�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
	0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
C
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�
��
�
�%
�
�


�
	�
��
�
�
�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

1


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�'
�
.0
�/


		
�
�
��
��
	�



��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

(
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��


	�
�
�
��
�
"�
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
D


�	
�
�
��

�>
��
	�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��


	�
�


�
�
�
	�
@�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
?�
:
��
��
��


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
�
��
�
�-
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�7
�
�
�
	�
�
 
��
	�
�
�%
�
�


�
	�
��
�
�
�
0�
�1
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�


�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�


��
��

��
��
�


�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

�
�
"�
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
E
	�
�
�
�,
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
?�
:
0�

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

!
��
)
��
��
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�	
�
��
�

�
�
��


��
�
	�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�


�
��
�

	�
�
��
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

/
�
��
'
�0
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�1
/
0


�
�
2

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
��


��
��
	�

�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�E
�
� 
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

	�


�
3�
��
�
�
��
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
�	
�
�


��
�


��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
3�
��
@�
�
��
��
��


F�

��
@�
/
�
�
�	
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
@�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�
��
��
G�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
0�
E
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


	�
�
�	
�
��
0�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�.
�
1
/
.�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
(
�
�
��
0

�
#
��
�
��
�

3



%
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�A
"�
*
��

�
��
��


�
�
��


��
�
	�



��
��
�
�


��
��
�
3�
H1

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�>
�
	�

�
�
	�
@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�0
�E
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
8�
��

�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
I0

�
#
��
�
��
�

 

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�3
��
��
 
�%
��
�
�
�'
4�
��

�
�
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�

;
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�
��
	�
�
��

�
�
�	
�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
3�
��
�
��
��
�

��
&


�
��
��
�
3�
0:
�
��
�
�
��
3�
�
0�
B
0�
.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
'
	�
�
�
	�
�7
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
	�
�

�
�


��
��
�
��
�




�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
�


��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
1
�
7
0�
.�
��
�
��
�
	�

�
��
�


	�
�
�
�
�
��
��



��
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
	�
��

�


��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
		
�
�


�
�
�

��
	�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
��
��


��
��
��
�
��
�
��
0�
E
�
�
�	
�
�


��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�-
1
��
�
��
�
��
	�

��
�
�
�-
1
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
0�

�
#
��
�
��
�

 

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	



��
�

��

�
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
��

�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�



�
��
��
�
��

�
�



�
�



��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
� 
��

�
�
��
�!
�

"
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�"
��
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�#
�
��
�
��
��
��


��

"

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�$
��
��
%
�
�
��
��


��
&�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�	



��
��
��

�
��

��
�
��
�
�
�



��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��

�
��

/
�
��
'
�0
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�1
/
0


�
�
2

�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
(
�
�
��
�

�
#
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�3
��
��
 
�

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
	 
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��


��
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��



	�
�
��
�
��
�
<�

�
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��


	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


��

�
	 
0

�
#
��
�
��
�

 




�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

E
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�/
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
0

�
#
��
�
��
�

(

6
�
�
*
�
��
�
�%

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 18



D
�
�
��


		
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�>
��
�
�
��


�J
��

�
�
�
�
	�
@0

E
�
�
�'
	�
�
�
	�
�7
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
	�
�

	�


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�0

1
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
� 
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�>


��
��


�J
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
@�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
	�

	�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

0�
;
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
	�




�
��
�
�
� 
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
�(

�
�
0

;
��
 
�
�K

��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�


�
��
��


��
��
�
	�
#
�
	�
�
	�
�/
��
	 
��
�
�
�!
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
!
��
��
�
�
�/
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

7
)
�
�0
�
�
��
8
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�-
1
��
�
	�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
0

�
(
��
3
��
�

3




�
�
�
��
�%
�

�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

'
��
�
�
�.
"
�*
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�*
'
�	


!
��
�8
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
)
J
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�7
�

�
�;
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�2
�
�
	�
��


�
�
��


0�
�


	�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�	
�
�	


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�

��
	�
��
��
	�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
0

�
�
��
#
��
�

�




�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
#
/
��

�
�
��
��
0

�
�
��
#
��
�

#

7
)
�
�0
�
�
��
8
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�2
�
�
	�
��
�2
�
�
	�
D
��
��


�
�
��


��
�
	�



��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
��
�
�
�-
1
��
�
	�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
0

�
�
��
#
��
�

�

6
�
�
*
�
��
�
�%

'
�


��
1
�
�
�
��
8�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
	�
	�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
F�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�;
�
�
	�
�
�
�(

�
�
�
��
�
��
K
�
<�

�
�
�

/
�


	�
�'
	�
�
�
	�
F�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�/
�
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��


�
�
�
	0

�
�
��
#
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�9
�

�
��
�
�
��

(
�




��
�K

�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�/
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�%
�
�
�
�/
�
�
��
�
�
��
�L
��
�
"/
�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
��
�

�




�
�
�
��
:
�
��
�

�
��

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
��


�

	�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
� 
��

�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�


��
��
�
�
�
��
�
� 
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

 

;
�
)
�


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�/
�
��
'
�0
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�,
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	
�/
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�8
�
��
��
-1

��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
��

�


��
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

#

6
�
�
*
�
��
�
�%

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�/
�
�
�	
��

�


��
��

	�
��
��
�
��
��
�1
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

��
��

�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�	
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
0�
0�
:
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�:
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
3

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
%�
�
�+
�
�
 
��
��
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�	
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
F�
�


	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
;
��
 
�
�K

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
<�
��
�
��
�
��
F�
��
��
�
�
 
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

.�
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�/
�
�
�	
��

�


��
��

	�
��
��
�
�/
�
�
�	
��
�
��
!
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�(

�




��
��
��
��

�
��

�


��
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��
��

��
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
�7
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
	�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

6
�
�
*
�
��
�
�%

H
a
rd

ip
 S

in
g
h
, 

 K
h
a
ls

a
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 a

 G
o
v
e
rn

o
r 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

M
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
�
 
��
�
��
�

�

J
u
lie

 O
’B

ri
e
n
, 

O
u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 
P

e
a
c
e
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d
 a

s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 M
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
H

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

’ 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
.

	


!
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�,
�
��
��
�
�
�:
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
	 
��
�
��
�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
	�
	�
�
�
	�
��


��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

	�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�0
�1
��
	�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��


��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�K

�
	 
�'
	�


	�
�
�
�
0

�
 
��
�
��
�

 

H
ig

h
 N

e
e
d

s
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y
 P

o
li

c
y

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�7
�

�
�;
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�'
�
��
��
��
�


�
8�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
	�
�
0�
.�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��

	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
6�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
0�

�
 
��
�
��
�

#

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 19



�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
$
�
�
:
��
*
J
0B
:
��
�
	�
��
�
�/
�
	�
�
�
�+
�
�


��
��
�
�/
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
"�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
"

�
:
0

�
 
��
�
��
�

(

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

�
�
�
�
��
�+
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
	�
�
	�
��
�
��
�


��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
0�
�

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

%�
�
�+
�
�
 
��
��

�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�	
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�;
��
 
�
�K

��
��
��
�
��
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
<�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
0�

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

R
e
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 

It
 w

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

S
t 

J
o
s
e
p
h
's

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 r
e
p
a
id

 £
4
0
0
,0

0
0
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 

(D
S

G
)

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

E
�
�
��
	�
��

��
��
�
	�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�	


��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
<�

�
�
�
��


	�
��
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��


�


�
��
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
3�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��

��
��
�
�
��
	�




�
��
��
�%


��
��
�
��

��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

��
�
��


��
�

	�
��
�



	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
<�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
	�

��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
�
�
	M
��
�


�


�
��
0�

�
3
��
�
��
�

#

F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%


��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
&


�
��
�
��
�
�E
�
�
��
1
�
7
��
��

�
�
��
�-
�
�
��

�7
��
��
�
�
�
�9
�
��
��
0�
.�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
�


	�
�


��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
	�
��

�
�
�
�0

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

.�
��

�
��
	�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�%
�
�


�
	�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
7
�
��
�
�7


�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�1
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
'
+
,
�?
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

;
��
 
�
�K

��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�


�
��
��


��
��
�
	�
!
��
��
�
�
�/
�
��
�
�
0�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

S
p

li
t 

S
it

e
 F

a
c
to

r

E
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
$
�
:
��
�
�
0�

�
�
��
�
��
�

3

H
a
lf

 Y
e
a
r 

D
S

G
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
$
J
)
�
��
�
�
��
$
A
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
:
?�
A
��


�


�
��
�>
$
:
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�#
��
� 
��
�
�
�

$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�7
�

�
�;
�
�
�
��
�
��
� 
@0
$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
	6
��


�
��

�
�
��
��

�
�	
�
��
�
�
!
��


	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�#
��
� 
��
�
	�
�
:
?�
A
0�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
��
�
�

�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�/
�
�
��
�


�
�
��
��
�



	�
��
��
$
)
�
J
��
B
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
"�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�3
�$
A
*
)
��
B
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
� 
��
�
�
�$
�
:
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
� 
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

 

C
e
n

tr
a
ll

y
 R

e
ta

in
e
d

 D
S

G

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��


�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
:
?�
A
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
&


�	
��


��


	�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
0�
�1
��


��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
��
�
	�

��
�
�%
�
�


�
	�
��

�
�
��
�


�>
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�"
��
�
�
	

�
	�
��
�
�
:
@�
0

�
�
��
�
��
�

(

D
e
-d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

: 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 T
ra

d
e
s
 U

n
io

n
 

E
�
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
	�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
"�
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�E
	�
�
�
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
�
�#
�
�
�
�
��


	�
�


�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��


0

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 U

p
d

a
te

 

;
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
(
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


	�
�
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
0�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�
	�



��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
:
?�
A
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
3�

��
��

�
�
�
	�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
3�
�
0�
J
��


��
	�


��
��
	�
�


��
�
�
��

	�
��
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
0�

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
:
"�
A
��
��

�
�
��
�#
��
� 
��
	�
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
�
�
	�
6�


�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�3
�$
A
*
)
��
B
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
"�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��

�
��
�


�
�
��
F�
�$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�
"�
�
��
�
!
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
:
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
"�
:
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
0

�
3
��
�
��
�

�

!
��
)
��
��
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�!
	�
�
��
��


�
�
��
�
�$
�
0�
��

��
��
�
�
��
�
�$
�
0A
��

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
:
?�
A
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�


	�
�
�
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
��
�
<�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
�
	0
�>
;
�
��
3�
�


		
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!
	�
�
��
��


�
�
��
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
�


	�
�
�
��


�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
��
�
<�

�
�
��
�
�
0@
�

�
3
��
�
��
�

3

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 D

S
G

 B
lo

c
k
s
 (

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 B

lo
c
k
)

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 20



�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
$
�
J
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
�9
�
�
�/
�
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
M��



�


�
��
F�
��
��

�
��
�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

#
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
:
?�
A
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�/
�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
�


��
��
�
�
�+
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
<�

�
�
�
��


	�
0�

�
3
��
�
��
�

 

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�#
��
� 
��


��
�


�
8�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


�
�
��


��
	�
�
��
�
�
�/
�


�
��
��
	�
��
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
.�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��


��
�
�
��
	�

�
�
0�

E
�
�
�/
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�	
�
&


�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�/
�


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�'
�
.�
��




	�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
6�
#
��
� 
��
�



	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
�
�	
�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
�

/
�


�
��
�6
��
��

�
�	
��


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�5
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
60
��

�
3
��
�
��
�

 

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 D

S
G

 B
lo

c
k
s
 (

H
ig

h
 N

e
e
d

s
 B

lo
c
k
)

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�'
�
.�
��




	�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��

�
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
�
B
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�$
�
B
�A
:
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
0�

�
3
��
�
��
�

#

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�7
�

�
�;
�
�
�
��
#
��
� 
��


��
�


�
8�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��


�
�
��


��
	�
�
��
�
�
�/
�


�
��
��
	�
��
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
.�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��


�

��
�
��
	�

�
�
0�
E
�
�
�/
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�	
�
&


�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�/
�


�
��
��
	�


�
	�
��


��
�
�
�/
�


�
��
�6
��
��

�
�	
��


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�5
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
60
��
��

�
3
��
�
��
�

#

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 D

S
G

 B
lo

c
k
s
 (

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 B
lo

c
k
)

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�2
�
�
	�
�#
��
� 
��
�
	�
�
�
�
:
"�
A
��
�
�
��


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
		
�
��
�
	�

�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
:
?�
A
��
�
	�
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��


�
�
��


0�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�

�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
<�

�
�
�
��


	�
��
��
�
�3
$
:
�
��
)
�
��
�
	�
#
�
�
�
�
��


	�
�


�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�$
�
�:
�
J
��
�
	�
E
	�
�
�
��
,
�
��
�
��


��
�
�0
�

�
3
��
�
��
�

(

D
S

G
 C

e
n

tr
a
ll

y
 H

e
ld

 B
u

d
g

e
ts

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
 -

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
s
it

io
n

 

U
p

d
a
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 l

o
g

 b
ri

n
g

in
g

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

a
ll

 c
e
n

tr
a
ll

y
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 F

o
ru

m
 o

v
e
r 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 a

n
d

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

s

H
ig

h
 N

e
e
d

s
 B

lo
c
k

�<
�

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
In

c
lu

s
io

n

F
4
0
6
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
1
0
3
6
0
0

F
1
6
6
 H

a
rd

 t
o

 P
la

c
e
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
6
7
0
0
0

F
4
3
0
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 C
h

il
d

re
n

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6
1
7
0
0

F
4
1
7
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 C
h

il
d

re
n

2
5
1
7
7
0

F
1
9
1
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7
0
0
0
0

F
3
2
1
 R

o
m

a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
5
2
0
0

F
2
3
5
 T

ra
v
e
ll

e
r'

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

D
S

G
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
4
0
0

S
E

N
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
4
0
6
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6
3
4
0

F
4
4
6
 E

d
u

c
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

fo
rm

e
r 

L
A

C
E

S
) 

  
  

  
 

1
0
6
7
8
0

F
4
1
0
 A

u
ti

s
m

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
8
5
7
3
0

F
4
1
7
 S

e
n

s
o

ry
 I

m
p

a
ir

m
e
n

t 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
7
0
0
0
0

F
4
6
0
 S

E
N

A
S

S
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
9
9
3
0
0

F
4
6
1
 R

e
ta

in
e
d

 S
E

N
A

S
S

1
8
2
0
0
0

S
E

N
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

F
4
1
3
 S

E
N

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0
0
0
0

E
O

T
A

S

F
4
1
8
 H

a
y
b

ro
o

k
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 (
E

O
T

A
S

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
3
0
9
9
5

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 B

lo
c
k

F
1
6
9
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

D
S

G
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
7
8
1
8
0

F
8
4
0
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 F

o
ru

m
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5
3
0
5
5

E
9
0
3
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 A

p
p

o
rt

io
n

m
e
n

t 
(A

N
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
4
9
1
0
0

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 21



F
3
2
2
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y
3
3
5
2
8
5

F
3
3
3
 R

a
is

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
  

  
  

  
  

 
5
7
6
1
7
6

F
3
4
8
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

  
  

  
  

  
2
6
2
1
0

F
3
8
4
 G

if
te

d
 a

n
d

 T
a
le

n
te

d
  

  
  

  
 

3
1
0
0
0

F
2
5
4
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
/B

ro
a
d

b
a
n

d
 C

o
n

3
0
0
0
0

F
2
6
0
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 C

e
n

tr
a
l 

C
o

o
rd

in
a
to

r
3
6
3
0
0

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 B
lo

c
k

E
9
0
1
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 G
ro

w
th

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
5
9
2
1
1

1
3
2
0
7
0

��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
�

	
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

6
�
�
*
�
��
�
�%

;
��
 
�
�K

��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�


�
��
��


��
��
�
	�
#
�
	�
�
	�
�/
��
	 
�>
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
�%


�
��
	@
�

�
 
��
�
��
�

�

:
�
�
�
�
��
+
��

�
��

.�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�



��
�	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
�%
�
�


�
	�
��
�
�
:
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�/
�
��
��
�
<�

�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�/
�
�
��
�
��
(
�
�
�
�
	�
��
	�
�
�


��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
0�

�
 
��
�
��
�

3

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�-
�


�(

�
	�
�
��
�
�
:

Page 22



 

Schools Forum Membership March 2014 

A review has been carried out of the balance of the current Schools Forum membership across phases, 

academies and maintained schools. The data used is numbers on roll as at 16th January 2014 (see table below).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary 

and Recommendations 

1 Total membership  

Schools Forum currently has 19 members. This includes 5 members representing: the maintained special 

school sector; the nursery sector; 16-19 providers; Early Years Private, Voluntary and Independent (PVI) 

providers and Children’s Centres. This paper does not make any recommendations in respect of those 

members, only in relation to academy and maintained school membership. 

 

Formerly, there was an additional member representing the maintained Pupil Referral Unit (PRU). 

 

Recommendation 1 

 

That membership is increased to 21.  (The recommendations that follow in the remainder of this paper 

assume this level of membership and will need to be adjusted if total membership is different from 21.) 

  

2 Membership across academies and maintained schools: 

Of the total 26,547 pupils being educated in academies, free schools and maintained schools (excluding 

special schools and nurseries), 14,874 are being educated in academies and 11,673 in maintained schools.  

This represents 56% in academies and free schools and 44% in maintained schools. 

Total NOR in Academies + Free Schools 14874 

Total NOR in Primary Academies + Free Schools 7653 

Total NOR in Secondary Academies 7075 

Total NOR in Standalone Nursery Academies 0 

Total NOR in Special + AP Academies 

 

146 

Total NOR in Maintained Schools including Nursery and Special  12635 

Total NOR in Maintained Primary 8329 

Total NOR in Maintained Secondary 3344 

Total NOR in Maintained Nursery 695 

Total NOR in Maintained Special 267 

  

  

  

Total NOR in Academies + Free Schools 14874 

Total NOR in Maintained Schools excluding special school and nurseries 11673 

Total NOR in Academies + Free Schools + Maintained Schools excluding special school and 

nurseries 26547 

  

Total NOR in Maintained Nursery and Special      962 

Total pupils 27509 

   

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 23



 

Schools Forum currently has 7 academy members and 7 from maintained schools, 14 in total.  In line with 

the percentage split above and the recommendation to increase the membership to 21, the new total of 16 

academies / schools’ members should be split into 9 academies’ members and 7 maintained schools’ 

members.  

 

Nicky Willis was previously elected by academies to fill the next vacancy arising. This can now be put in 

place, bringing the membership in place for academies to 4 primary academy members and 4 secondary 

members, with one remaining vacancy to be filled. 

 

Recommendation 2 

 

Ø Academy proprietors be asked to elect an additional academy representative, giving 9 academy 

members in total 

3 Academy membership  

It is for the academy proprietors both to elect members and to decide on the phase balance but Schools 

Forum would wish to suggest that account be taken of the relative number of pupils in each phase and of the 

fact that there are now special schools and PRU academies in determining the 9 members.   

Across the academies, 51.5% pupils are in the primary phase and 47.5% in secondary with the remaining 1% 

in special and the PRU.   The primary / secondary phases are evenly represented with 4 primary academy 

members and 4 secondary members. 

The previous maintained PRU member (Helen Huntley) has continued to attend Schools Forum to provide 

continuity and expertise and it would seem sensible for Schools Forum to recommend to academy 

proprietors that they consider Helen Huntley in electing the 9
th

 member.  

Recommendation 3 

Ø In asking academy proprietors to elect a further member (see Recommendation 2 above) to ask that 

they consider this being Helen Huntley to represent the PRU and special academies.    

4 Maintained schools membership  

Schools Forum currently has 7 members representing maintained schools: 5 primary and 2 secondary.  This 

accords with the proposal above that the 16 academies / schools’ members be split into 9 academies’ 

members and 7 maintained schools’ members.  

 

Across the maintained schools, 71.35% of pupils are in primary schools and 28.64% in secondary.  This would 

mean that the current split of members representing the two phases across the maintained sector (5 

primary and 2 secondary members) is correct and no changes need to be made at this time.  

5 Future Membership  

A number of members’ terms of office end in September 2014 and the membership will require further 

review in the summer term to take account of this and of any other changes in membership as well as any 

further academy conversions.           

Page 24



 

Maggie Waller           March 2014 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



A
c

a
d

e
m

ie
s

 (
9

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

)

V
A

C
A

N
C

Y
 (

1
 m

e
m

b
e

r)
T

B
C

T
B

C
A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
T

B
C

P
ri

m
a

ry
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 (

4
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
)

L
y
n

c
h

 H
ill

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l
A

c
a

d
e

m
y

G
ill

ia
n

 C
o

ff
e

y
 (

H
/T

)

S
u

b
s
ti
tu

te
 N

ic
k
y
 W

ill
is

A
u

g
-1

5

J
a

m
e

s
 E

lli
m

a
n

 
A

c
a

d
e

m
y

J
o

n
 R

e
e

k
ie

 (
G

)
A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 

N
o

v
-1

6

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 t

o
 b

e
 f

ill
e

d
 b

y
 C

ip
p

e
n

h
a

m
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l
A

c
a

d
e

m
y

N
ic

k
y
 W

ill
is

 (
H

/T
)

A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 

T
B

C

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 A
c

a
d

e
m

ie
s

 (
4

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

)

H
e

rs
c
h

e
l 
G

ra
m

m
a

r
A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 S

e
le

c
ti
v
e

J
o

 R
o

c
k
a

ll
S

e
p

-1
4

L
a

n
g

le
y
 G

ra
m

m
a

r
A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 S

e
le

c
ti
v
e

J
o

h
n

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
le

 (
H

/T
)

S
e

p
-1

4

S
lo

u
g

h
 &

 E
to

n
 C

 o
f 

E
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 C
o

lle
g

e
 

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 

N
o

n
-S

e
le

c
ti
v
e

P
a

u
l 
M

c
A

te
e

r 
(H

/T
)

S
u

b
 B

e
a

 W
ill

ia
m

s

S
e

p
-1

4

U
p

to
n

 C
o

u
rt

 G
ra

m
m

a
r 

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 S

e
le

c
ti
v
e

P
a

u
l 
A

d
a

m
s
 (

G
)

A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
J
u

l-
1

6

M
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 (

7
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
)

P
ri

m
a

ry
 (

5
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
)

H
o

ly
 F

a
m

ily
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
e

d
M

a
g

g
ie

 W
a

lle
r(

G
)

A
u

g
-1

5

S
t 

A
n

th
o

n
y
’s

 R
C

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
e

d
 

M
a

g
g

ie
 S

ta
c
e

y
 (

H
/T

)
A

u
g

-1
5

W
e

x
h

a
m

 C
o

u
rt

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

N
a

v
ro

o
p

 M
e

h
a

t 
(H

/T
)

P
ri

m
a

ry
 H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
rs

 
J
u

l-
1

6

K
h

la
s
a

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
e

d
H

a
rd

ip
 S

in
g

h
 (

G
)

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 

O
c
t-

1
6

O
u

r 
L

a
d

y
 o

f 
P

e
a

c
e

 J
u

n
io

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
e

d
J
u

lie
 O

'B
ri

e
n

 (
H

/T
) 

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 H
e

a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 
O

c
t-

1
6

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 (
2

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 )

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 A
id

e
d

 

N
o

n
-S

e
le

c
ti
v
e

W
e

x
h

a
m

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 N

o
n

-S
e

le
c
ti
v
e

M
a

ry
 S

p
a

rr
o

w
S

e
p

-1
4

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

(1
 m

e
m

b
e

r)

A
rb

o
u

r 
V

a
le

 S
c
h

o
o

l
S

p
e

c
ia

l
D

e
b

b
ie

 R
ic

h
a

rd
s
 (

H
/T

)
N

o
v
-1

6

N
u

rs
e

ry
  

(1
 m

e
m

b
e

r)

B
a

y
lis

 C
o

u
rt

 N
u

rs
e

ry
N

u
rs

e
ry

P
h

ili
p

 G
re

g
o

ry
A

u
g

-1
5

1
4

-1
9

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

(1
 M

e
m

b
e

r)

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	


�


�


�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

S
t.

 J
o

s
e

p
h

’s
 S

c
h

o
o

l
K

e
v
in

 O
’D

ri
s
c
o

ll 
- 

(G
)

A
p

r-
1

5

G
o

d
o

lp
h

in
 J

u
n

io
r 

S
c
h

o
o

l
A

c
a

d
e

m
y

B
a

rb
a

ra
 C

la
rk

 (
H

/T
)

S
u

b
s
ti
tu

te
: 

N
ic

k
y
 W

ill
is

 

A
u

g
-1

5

S
c

h
o

o
l 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l
G

o
v
e

rn
o

r 
(G

) 
/
H

e
a

d
te

a
c

h
e

r 
(H

/T
)

E
le

c
te

d
 b

y
T

e
rm

 o
f 

o
ff

ic
e

 e
n

d
s

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��



�
�


	�
�
��
��

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�

Page 27



1
6

 -
 1

9
 P

ro
v
id

e
r

1
6

-1
9

 P
ro

v
id

e
r

K
a

te
 W

e
b

b
 

s
u

b
 V

ir
g

in
ia

 B
a

rr
e

tt

J
u

l-
1

6

P
V

I 
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

(1
 M

e
m

b
e

r)

B
a

rn
e

y
 B

e
e

s
 D

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ry

P
V

I 
P

ro
v
id

e
r

L
o

u
is

e
 L

u
n

d
P

V
Is

D
e

c
-1

6

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 (

1
 M

e
m

b
e

r)

S
lo

u
g

h
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
J
e

a
n

 C
a

m
e

ro
n

O
c
t-

1
5

2
1

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

O
b

s
e

rv
e

rs
L

y
n

d
a

 B
u

s
s

le
y
 (

s
u

b
 D

a
v
id

 W
a

rr
e

n
) 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
g

e
n

c
y

A
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s

:
A

n
g

e
la

 M
e

ll
is

h
 

C
ll

r 
M

a
n

n
 (

M
e

m
b

e
r 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

)

T
o

ta
l 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

: 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��



�
�


	�
�
��
��

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
	4 2014-15 Budget Process Update
	5 Growth Fund Outturn
	7 Funding for Specialist Leaders of Education
	10 2013-14 Work Programme and Key Decisions Log
	Schools Forum Key Decisions and Issues Log V15 040314

	11 Membership
	Schools Forum Membership March 2014 final


